
MINUTES 
BRISTOL SELECT BOARD 

April 24, 2014 
 

PRESENT:  Select Board Members: Rick Alpers, Joe Denning, Janet Cote, Betsy Schneider, Shaun 

Lagueux and Town Administrator Michael Capone.     

 

Mr. Alpers opened the meeting of the Bristol Select Board at 6:00 PM at the Water-Sewer Treatment 

Plant Facility.   

 

Mr. Denning made a motion to approve the revised minutes of the April 10, 2014 meeting with a 
second from Mr. Lagueux.  With no further discussion, the Board voted 5-0 in favor of approving 
the minutes as amended. 
 
New Business: 
 

Highway Department Purchase Updates  

Mark Bucklin reviewed materials supplied to the Board on alternatives to purchasing a six wheel 

dump truck with a plow and sander body.  There were four companies contacted for truck pricing, 

with the lowest price obtained from Freightliner. Mr. Bucklin made the recommendation to go with 

Freightliner for the truck and Tenco for the snow plow and sander body.  There would be a 6-8 

week turnaround time for the order to be complete.  Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the 

PO#005291 in the amount of $126,369 for the new highway truck with plow and sander body, 

seconded by Mrs. Cote.  Upon vote by the Board, the motion passed in a vote of 5-0.   

 

Information for the sidewalk tractor was reviewed as well.  Mr. Bucklin obtained more information 

on pricing alternatives which the Board discussed.  Ms. Schneider inquired on whether the Town 

Administrator had spoken with DRA on the warrant article language.  Mr. Capone reviewed 

information with DRA and felt the Town was in a safe position.  The total appropriation approved 

was $142,725.  Some of the options presented offered warranties, however others did not.  The 

usual warranty limits are one year or 1,000 work hours or two years or 2,000 work hours on power 

train and hydraulics.  Mr. Bucklin presented some additional information with regard to some other 

units to consider. He had also been out to visit some of the companies and view the equipment 

being considered.  Mr. Bucklin stated he had not had a chance to see all the equipment and would 

like to see as many possible to compare.  There was some positive feedback received on the Maclean 

equipment. The Board discussed various options including warranties, pricing and selling versus 

trading the Town’s equipment.   

 

 

 

 

 



Old Town Hall 

Mr. Capone updated the Board on recent actions taken to secure pricing for the roof repair.  A sheet 

with comparison pricing supplied by Sandra Heaney was reviewed.  Pricing for repairs to the 

building provided by CCI was discussed as well.  Metal roofing versus shingles was considered as an 

option.  Ms. Heaney suggested that the Town should at least consider shoring up the building in the 

meantime even if there is no intent to use it in the future.  Clay Dingman and Susan Duncan also 

commented on the need to do something with the building in the meantime since funds have been 

appropriated from Town Meeting.  Ms. Schneider added that she felt there were ways to cut costs by 

doing some of the work ourselves offering to assist Ms. Heaney and cut fees.  Mr. Alpers 

commented on the need to have a Project Manager to oversee the work, as a neutral third party 

however there is the option to save money which is also important.  A discussion on the oversight 

of the project took place between the Board and those present at the meeting.  Mr. Denning added 

that he agrees and sees the need for repairs however oversight is needed.  Mrs. Cote stated that in 

comparison with the options faced by the Board, the only viable option is to take responsibility and 

do something about the building.  Mr. Lagueux shared that he felt there is support for repairing the 

building from the community, and that they should utilize the tools they have with minimal risk.  

Mr. Dingman stated that there is strong support from the community asking to repair and keep the 

Old Town Hall.  Ms. Schneider is willing to look over the comparisons with Ms. Heaney to look at 

what options they have also suggesting that per the policy anything over $10,000 requires a sealed 

bid which will save money.  Mrs. Duncan stated that while making other repairs to the building, 

some air quality issues would be addressed before they actually tackle that issue.   

 

Jeff Chartier – Water/Wastewater Updates 

Jeff Chartier updated the Board on the meter installation project.  290 meters were purchased, and 

there are about two dozen left from that batch.  Of the current new installations, only two opt out 

requests were received.  Benefits to using the meters were discussed.  Other structural upgrades 

needed were discussed.  Mr. Alpers inquired on the collection rates for billing.  Mr. Chartier stated 

that they do not have many outstanding accounts, several are due to the owners living out of state 

and have forgotten a bill.  Mr. Alpers inquired on any system breaks and an update on the storm 

well.  Mr. Chartier stated he has been working with Bill Dowey on exploring grant options for 

energy upgrades using alternative energy sources.  Mr. Alpers suggested an annual review of water 

and sewer rates to make sure there is enough money going into capital reserves.   

 

The Board discussed emergency plans for the Town’s Water and Wastewater operations.  All 

operations are in compliance with DES currently.  Mrs. Cote inquired on testing of the Breck-

Plankey Spring.  Mr. Chartier offered monthly testing as a precaution but indicated that the State 

requires additional testing.   Mr. Alpers inquired if fellow Board members were interested in a tour 

of the facilities.  Mr. Chartier will coordinate that at a later date.   

 

Assessing Items 

Mr. Alpers asked Board members to review and sign various assessing items.   



 

Town Administrator’s Report  
The May 8th meeting will be held at the Town Office location which will include a public 
information meeting on the current Safe Routes to School project.  The May 22nd meeting will be 
held at the Fire Station.   
 
Mr. Capone indicated various local banks were contacted for a Tax Anticipation Note (TAN).  
Meredith Village Savings Bank (MVSB) was able to offer the best rate at 1.75 %.  The TAN will be 
for $1,000,000 but Mr. Capone did not think we would need that much.  Mr. Denning made a 
motion to authorize for a TAN with MVSB at 1.75%, seconded by Mr. Lagueux. The Board 
approved the TAN in a vote of 5-0. 
 
Mr. Capone is still working on the directional signs with the State.  He asked if the Board was 
interested in considering other signage options.  Additional information will be provided to the 
Board for review before a decision is made.  The Board discussed thoughts and concerns with the 
need for signage for businesses and how it should look.   
 
Select Board Items 
2014 EMS contracts approved in Hill, Danbury and Alexandria were presented to the Board for 
signatures.   
 
Mr. Lagueux inquired on beach clean-up at this time.  Mr. Capone explained that presently, there 
was clean-up work being done on the cemeteries.  There was some discussion about clean up at 
Kelley Park and maintenance of the fields.  He also inquired on the Library’s opening for a new 
director.  Mr. Capone informed the Board that the Trustees had already begun the process of 
seeking a replacement.  Mr. Alpers suggested a letter thanking Ms. Warga for her work at the 
Library.   
 
Mrs. Cote inquired on the status of the auditor’s management letter outstanding items.  Finance has 
been working with Mr. Chartier on addressing the Water and Sewer projects.  They have also 
provide the Auditors with additional information on fixed assets.  She also inquired on the pole 
work being done in town.  Mr. Capone will contact PSNH for an update.  Mrs. Cote also inquired 
on the Welcome to Bristol signage with Karen Bush.  Mr. Capone will update the Board after he 
speaks with her.  Mrs. Cote also inquired on rental of the downtown common.  The Events 
Committee previously made suggestions for use of the Town Common including rental of the space.  
She suggested a policy for use of the space and a larger discussion by the Board.  Mr. Alpers stated 
that there are laws to protect the Town from incidents that may occur on the common, however as a 
recreational land it’s difficult to charge for use.  Mr. Capone will research the matter further with Ms. 
Goodwin.  She also inquired on the research on the back-in parking.  Mr. Capone has been in 
contact with the LRPC and NHDOT inquiring as to when the traffic study will resume.  Mrs. Cote 
inquired on the Kelley Park Build Day and donated funds.  Specifically how the funds are being 
managed.  Mr. Capone stated that he had informed the Committee that at least $30,000 of the 
money collected needed to be place in the Kelley ark equipment fund so that it could be withdrawn 
from there per the Warrant Article passed at Town Meeting.  There are some funds being collected 
and deposited in a TTCC account separate from the Town.  She inquired on the punch-list for the 
downtown project. Mr. Capone noted that he was working with Mr. Vignale on getting the list 
completed Mrs. Cote also inquired on Memorial Day events.  Since it is not a Town event, Mr. 



Denning suggested contacting Ron Preble for information.  Mrs. Cote asked about the beach 
parking and furniture on the beach.  Mr. Capone noted that he had reviewed the parking with Mr. 
Vignale and there was not sufficient paved surface presently to put angle parking at the beach.  Mr. 
Capone also mentioned that he had spoken with the NHMA attorneys regarding furniture left on 
the beach.  They noted that a policy could be developed.  The Board discussed some possible 
options for addressing the issue.  Mr. Capone will develop some language to be placed on the beach 
as well as a notice that could be placed on unattended furniture asking for beach goers to remove 
their furniture if unattended four a period of time.   
 
Mr. Alpers mentioned he will be attending the School Board meeting on Monday at 6PM to discuss 
the withdrawal of Hebron/Bridgewater from the school district.  Other Board members may be in 
attendance.  He also mentioned that he would like to see the Town move ahead with the Safe 
Routes to School Project and the Pemi Trail Project this year.  Mr. Capone noted that he was going 
to contact the NHDOT representative to find out if the federal funds for the construction of the 
Safe Routes to School Project would be available this year..   
 
Public Comments 

Mr. Cote inquired on funds in the capital reserve funds for Water and Wastewater.  Mr. Capone 
noted that there were over $666,000 in reserve funds in those two accounts. 
 
Ms. Hoyle inquired on the wording and symbols on the proposed directional signage.  She also 
commented on the late posting of the meeting agenda.  It was noted that the meetings agendas are 
generally posted on Tuesdays on the website.  Mr. Courchaine mentioned that they were indeed on 
the site.  Mr. Capone suggested that Ms. Hoyle hit the f5 key on her computer to manually refresh 
the homepage.  He has had success by doing this in the past. Ms. Hoyle also asked about trash cans 
being placed downtown.  Mr. Capone will check with Mr. Bucklin. 
 
Board members discussed colors and flower types for downtown but deferred the decision to the 
Garden Club.    
 
With no other public business to come before the Board, at 8:12PM, Mr. Denning made a motion to 
enter non-public session under RSA 91-A: 3 (a), seconded by Mr. Lagueux.  The motion passed in a 
roll call vote by the Board 5-0.   
 

At 8:22PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to come out of non-public session.  The motion was 

seconded by Mr. Denning.   The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

 

At 8:23PM Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Denning.  

The Board voted to 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted:  

Kelly Lacasse   
 
 



_____________________________  _____________________________ 
Rick Alpers, Chair            Joe Denning, Vice Chair 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Betsy Schneider, Select Board   Janet Cote, Select Board 
 
 
______________________________ 
Shaun Lagueux, Select Board 
 

 


